
Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Council Chamber - Ashford Borough Council, Civic 
Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford, Kent TN23 1PL on Monday, 12th February, 2018 at 
7.00 pm.

The Members of the Standards Committee are:-

Councillor Dehnel (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs Bell (Vice-Chairman)

Cllrs. Chilton, Hicks, Howard-Smith, Knowles, Ovenden, White

Independent Person – Mrs C Vant

Parish Council Representatives: - Mr R Brasier, Mr D Lyward

Agenda
Page Nos.

1.  Apologies/Substitutes

To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(iii)

2.  Declarations of Interest 1 - 2

To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document:

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests

See Agenda Item 2 for further details

3.  Minutes - To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this 
Committee held on the 31st January 2017

3 - 6

4.  Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2017 7 - 22

DS
2nd February 2018

Public Document Pack



Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Danny Sheppard - 01233 330349 
danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

http://www.ashford.gov.uk/committees


Agenda Item 2

Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members”below)

(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to 
items on this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest 
must be declared, and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting for that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).

(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct as adopted 
by the Council on 19 July 2012, relating to items on this agenda.  The nature as 
well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the agenda 
item(s) to which it relates must be stated.

A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the 
meeting before the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation 
has been granted).  However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the 
Committee in the same way that a member of the public may do so.

(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed 
under (a) and (b), i.e. announcements made for transparency reasons alone, such 
as:

 Membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda 
items, or

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close 
association with that person, or

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close 
associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial position.

[Note: an effect on the financial position of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc; OR an application made by a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc, would both probably constitute either an OSI or in some cases a 
DPI].

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:  
(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf

(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012,
and a copy can be found in the Constitution at
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols 

(c) If any Councillor has any doubt about the existence or nature of any DPI or OSI 
which he/she may have in any item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice 
from the Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and Monitoring Officer or from 
other Solicitors in Legal and Democratic Services as early as possible, and in 
advance of the Meeting. Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
http://www.ashford.gov.uk/part-5---codes-and-protocols


This page is intentionally left blank



STD

619

Standards Committee
Minutes of a Meeting of the Standards Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 31st January 2017.

Present:

Cllr. Dehnel (Chairman);
Cllr. Mrs Bell (Vice-Chairman)
Cllrs. Chilton, Mrs Dyer, Feacey, Hicks, Mrs Webb.

Mrs C Vant – Independent Person
Mr R Brasier – Parish Council Representative.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2(iii) Councillor Mrs Webb attended as 
Substitute Member for Councillor Knowles.

Apology:

Cllr. Knowles.

Also Present:

Monitoring Officer, Senior Member Services Officer.

276 Minutes
The Chairman advised that actions from the last meeting regarding the review of 
governance arrangements at Chilham Parish Council and the appointment of a 
Deputy Monitoring Officer would be covered later in the meeting as part of the 
Annual Report. He also advised that the Committee’s previous recommendation to 
make an addition to Article 2.03 (vi) of the Constitution regarding attendance at 
training events had been actioned.

The Committee then discussed the wider the topic of Member Training. The 
Chairman considered that the Standards Committee was generally a very reactive 
Committee and he would like it to be a bit more pro-active. Whilst the Committee did 
not determine the actual training programme and could only encourage attendance, 
he said he was interested in ‘outputs’ and what tools were necessary to enable a 
Councillor to display good standards in terms of probity, conduct and 
professionalism. Other Members said that it was important to properly equip 
Councillors to do their job and there was perhaps some scope to suggest that 
training on certain subjects was made compulsory for new Members. The Vice-
Chairman said she had reservations about some of the proposals for training – both 
from the Member Training Panel and those mentioned at this meeting. She 
considered there was a danger of ‘over-training’ as Councillors were elected to 
represent their residents, and too much Officer led training could affect the flexibility 
and independence with which the role was undertaken. She would personally resist 
too much compulsory training. She understood that the Member Training Panel had 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



STD
310117

620

made its proposals, and they would now be considered by the Cabinet on the 9th 
February. The Committee noted that this whole subject was something that would 
need further discussion after consideration by the Cabinet although it was not 
directly in the remit of the Standards Committee.

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 25th January 
2016 be approved and confirmed as a correct record.

277 Annual Report of the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
2016

The Monitoring Officer introduced his annual report to be presented to the Council on 
the 16th February 2017. The report assessed activity in probity matters, in particular 
in relation to formal complaints about alleged breaches of protocols and codes of 
conduct by Borough and Parish Councillors for the calendar year 2016. The report 
also included data on Ombudsman complaints as these were also handled by the 
Monitoring Officer and his staff. The relevant period related to the most recent data 
provided by the Ombudsman, namely 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016. He said that 
the report was a pleasing one to present with very little negative activity.

With regard to Code of Conduct Complaints, there had been no new complaints 
made this year. Three cases were referred to in the report – two had been carried 
over from last year and determined this year whilst one, albeit on the required 
complaint form, was in effect a complaint about service delivery. The complainant 
was therefore advised to pursue it as a service complaint. In relation to Ombudsman 
Complaints the Monitoring Officer said there had been eight resolved by the Local 
Government Ombudsman (LGO) which was a reduction on the previous year. Only 
two of these complaints had been upheld and only one had been ruled as 
maladministration with injustice. 

Whilst Code of Conduct complaint activity in Ashford remained low, the Monitoring 
Officer said it was also worth drawing attention to matters relating to declarations of 
interest, the Council’s constitution and Member training, all of which were outlined in 
the report. He also updated on the independent review of governance undertaken at 
Chilham Parish Council which had seen a pleasing outcome. The problems that had 
beset the previous Parish Council appeared to have been resolved and they had 
moved from an extremely dysfunctional Council to one which operated effectively 
and efficiently.  With regard to the appointment of a Deputy Monitoring Officer he 
advised that the previous post holder had in fact returned on a part time basis up to 
Christmas 2016 so there had not been a need to make an appointment up until now. 
He would now look to appoint a Deputy(s) in the near future. 

The Chairman said he wanted to echo the comments about Chilham Parish Council. 
As Ward Member for the area he had seen the Parish Council move from 
dysfunctional to outstanding in the last 18 months. There had been a total 
replacement of the previous membership and they had got their act together, were 
producing good quality work and the local community were happy. The output of the 

Page 4



STD
310117

621

independent review and subsequent action plan should also be acknowledged. He 
encouraged all Members to make every effort to attend the Parish Council meetings 
in their Wards.

The Chairman considered that the low number of complaints received by and 
decided against the Council spoke a great deal about the quality of its Officers. The 
Committee agreed to record a vote of thanks and congratulations to the Officers of 
the Council for their quality and professionalism.

Resolved:

That (i) the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer 2016 be received, 
noted and forwarded to Full Council for approval.

(ii) the Monitoring Officer continue to offer support and guidance to 
Chilham Parish Council in completion of the review of their action 
plan.

(iii) the Committee record a vote of thanks to the Council’s Officers 
for the low number of complaints received which, in the 
Committee’s view, reflected the quality and professionalism of the 
Council’s staff.

_________________________

___________________________________________________________________

Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Danny Sheppard:
Telephone: 01233 330349  Email: danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Standards Committee
 12 February 2018

Council
 22 February 2018

Annual Report Of The Council's
Monitoring Officer –  2017

A. Introduction

1. The principal purpose of my Annual Report is to assess activity in probity 
matters, in particular in relation to formal complaints about alleged breaches of 
protocols and codes of conduct by borough and parish councillors.  The report 
provides an opportunity to review the effectiveness of current procedures based 
on real data.  This report deals with the calendar year 2017 in relation to these 
matters.

2. The Council’s current code of conduct for councillors was adopted on 20 July 
2012 and has since been the subject of minor amendments.  This code is based 
on Localism Act principles and was developed as a collaborative project by Kent 
Monitoring Officers in consultation with task groups of councillors within 
individual councils.  The vast majority of district and parish councils in Kent have 
adopted this “Kent Model Code of Conduct”.  

3. When it adopted the Code of Conduct in 2012, the Council also adopted new 
procedural “Arrangements” for handling code of conduct complaints.  Again this 
was developed on a Kent-wide basis with the objective of simplifying procedures 
and removing unnecessary bureaucracy which had beset the previous standards 
regime.

4. The Council has also adopted a “Good Practice Protocol for Councillors Dealing 
with Planning Matters”.  This sets out detailed best practice rules for this 
specialist and sensitive area of the Council’s work which go beyond the general 
rules set out in the code of conduct.  The Protocol was substantially revised and 
updated in October 2015 to reflect changes in the law and government guidance.  
The first formal complaint of breach of the Protocol was dealt with in 2017.

5. My Annual Report also includes data on Ombudsman complaints as these are 
also handled by the Monitoring Officer and his staff.  The Standards Committee 
monitors any issues of probity raised in Ombudsman investigations.  In terms of 
Ombudsman complaints the relevant period relates to the most recent data 
provided by the Ombudsman namely that for the period 1st April 2016 to 31 
March 2017.

B. Code of Conduct and Related Matters  2017

6. Complaint activity in Ashford has been very low since adoption of the new code 
of conduct in 2012. For example, during 2016 no new formal complaints were 
submitted, whilst in previous years the few complaints made, mainly at Parish 
Council level, had been resolved informally.  No complaints had been taken to 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



formal investigation and hearing up to the end of 2016.  However 2017 has been 
more challenging.  

.

7. A significant level of formal Code of Conduct complaint has arisen during 2017.  
This has involved both borough and parish councillors.  In addition, the first 
formal complaint under the Council’s Planning Protocol was dealt with.  Further 
details of these formal complaints are set out in Table 1 below.

8. There was also a significant increase in informal complaint and contact with the 
Monitoring Officer regarding parish council activity.  Some of this may yet result 
in further formal complaints.  There has been a noticeable increase in requests 
for advice from and meetings with the Monitoring Officer in this regard.  Subjects 
have ranged from allegations of non-declaration of interests to complaints about 
procedural issues on development-related decisions and disruptive and bullying 
behaviour.

9. Although there is no obvious single reason for the increase in incidence of 
complaints, it will be important to carefully monitor developments in 2018 to see 
if any trend or pattern emerges.  Having said that two factors appear to have 
contributed:

 the increased use/misuse of social media by Councillors which has given 
rise to more complaints about personal and defamatory attacks.

 increased activity and local controversy in relation to preparation of 
Neighbourhood Plans and consultations on sites for inclusion in the new 
Borough Local Plan has been the background to some complaints and 
allegations.

10. In order to address the social media issue, I recommend that in consultation with 
our media team I prepare for consideration by the Standards Committee a Social 
Media Policy for the guidance of Councillors.  This would provide advice on risks, 
best practice etc.  I also recommend that the Council’s Code of Conduct be 
amended to draw attention to the need to exercise care when using social 
media.  Although it is not practicable or desirable to lay down hard and fast rules 
in the Code of Conduct about how Councillors should use or describe 
themselves on social media, some broad requirements in the Code can only 
assist.  This would also enable use of social media to be one of the focuses of 
Member induction training on the Code in 2019.  Accordingly I recommend the 
addition of the following clauses in the Code:

(a) “ You must not publish on social media material that a reasonable person 
would consider offensive or abusive.

(b) You should be aware that members of the public may perceive you to be 
acting as a Councillor even when you are acting in your personal capacity.  
This includes when you publish material on social media.  You must make 
it clear in your social media profile and/or in any post/tweets etc whether 
you are acting in your personal capacity or as a Councillor.”

Page 8



11. I also recommend that parish councils be invited to consider adopting a social 
media policy and amendments to their own Codes of Conduct (most of which are 
based on the Kent Model Code).

C. Other Probity/Conduct Matters

12. During 2017, the Monitoring Officer began a comprehensive exercise of seeking 
updated Disclosable Pecuniary Interest registration forms from all borough and 
parish councillors.  This will minimise the risk of breaches of the Interest rules.  
The forms also now include “privacy notices” in accordance with the General 
Data Protection Regulation which comes into force in May 2018.  This explains 
the basis on which the information is collected and how it will be used.  
Councillors are now all registered as data controllers with the Information 
Commissioner.

13. All Ashford Borough Council meeting agendas now include a specific item at the 
beginning of a meeting seeking declarations of interest.  The item has been 
updated to provide relevant advice about when to declare different types of 
interest.

14. The updated Constitution now enshrines a formal training pre-condtion to 
membership of the two main regulatory Committees (Planning and Licensing) 
and a requirement that this training be refreshed every 4 years.  This will reduce 
the risk of complaints relating to these sensitive functions.

15. During 2018, the influential Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) 
intends to undertake a review of Local Government standards.  A consultation is 
expected to be launched in the near future.  A key feature of the consultation will 
be how Local Government has adapted to devolved standards arrangements 
since the Localism Act and whether a culture of ethical practice in public life has 
been maintained.  I will report further on this consultation to the Standards 
Committee in due course.

Table 1

Valid Code of Conduct/Planning Protocol Complaints Made or Resolved

Council Ref. Allegation(s) Decision(s) Comments

ABC17/01 
Ashford Borough 
Council

Bringing 
Council/Office into 
disrepute

Complaint resolved 
by remedial action

Social media case

ABC17/03 
Tenterden Town 
Council (2 
complaints)

Failure to register or 
declare interest at 
meetings.  Bringing 
Council into disrepute

No breach of the 
Code

Monitoring Officer 
decision

Page 9



Council Ref. Allegation(s) Decision(s) Comments

ABC17/04 Alleged 
bias/predetermination 
by member of 
Planning Committee 
on an application 
which came before 
the Committee for 
decision

No breach of Good 
Practice Planning 
Protocol

PLANNING 
PROTOCOL 
COMPLAINT

ABC 17/06 
Ashford Borough 
Council (2 
complaints)

Breach of Code by 
allegedly defamatory 
statements

Referred for 
investigation

Social media case

ABC 17/09 
Ashford Borough 
Council (2 
complaints)

Breach of Code by 
allegedly  defamatory 
/bullying statements

Referred for 
investigation

Partially social 
media case

ABC 17/08 
Aldington and 
Bonnington 
Parish Council (3 
complaints)

Various Code 
breaches alleged 
including disrepute 
and bullying

Referred for 
investigation

ABC 17/11 
Tenterden Town 
Council

Bringing Council into 
disrepute/bullying

Not acting in 
capacity as 
Councillor so Code 
inapplicable

Social media case

ABC 17/12 
Bethersden 
Parish Council

Disruptive and 
bullying conduct

STILL UNDER 
CONSIDERATION

ABC 17/13 
Bethersden 
Parish Council

Disruptive and 
bullying conduct

STILL UNDER 
CONSIDERATION

D. Ombudsman Complaints 2016/17

16. Since April 2013, complaints about social housing have been dealt with by the 
Housing Ombudsman (HO) and not the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO).  

17. For Members’ information the analysis of the complaints resolved by the LGO in 
2016/17 are attached (Appendix A).  The LGO’s Annual Letter and Report are 
also included in Appendix A.

E. Recommendations

Page 10



1. That the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2017 be received and 
noted. 

2. That the Council’s Code of Conduct be amended to include a social media 
clause as set out in Section B of the Report.

3. That the Monitoring Officer report to future meetings of the Standards 
Committee in relation to the following matters:

(i) a social media policy for Councillors
(ii) any consultation by the CSPL as referred to in Section C of the Report.

T W MORTIMER
Director of Law and Governance & Monitoring Officer
January 2018

Page 11



Appendix A - Analysis of Ombudsman Complaints

The Ombudsman investigates complaints about Council services to remedy personal 
injustice caused by maladministration (or "fault") or service failure.

Between 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017 the Local Government Ombudsman 
(LGO) received 21 complaints and enquiries, and made 20 decisions on these, as 
follows:

Not referred to the Council by the LGO 
Incomplete or invalid complaint 1
Advice Given by LGO 1
Referred back for local resolution 

Investigated by the LGO

Closed after initial enquiries 6

Not upheld 2

Upheld 4

TOTAL 20

It should be noted that of the 4 upheld decisions, 3 related to a joint complaint by 3 
neighbours, who were counted separately in the above figures.  For comparison, in
2015/16 the LGO resolved 22 complaints, 2 of which were upheld, and there were no
Housing Ombudsman complaints.

During this period 4 complaints were received by the Housing Ombudsman.  Three 
of these were referred back to the Council for local resolution, which was successful. 
There is one outstanding Housing Ombudsman complaint for this period.

When the LGO has issued a report on a completed investigation, these are generally 
published in the Complaints Outcomes section of the LGO website www.lgo.org.uk. 
The published information does not name the complainant or any individual involved 
with the complaint.

The outcomes of the 12 complaints investigated by the LGO in 2016/17 are detailed 
below:-

Closed after initial enquiries- out of jurisdiction or no further action 6

Not upheld: No Maladministration 2

Upheld: Maladministration  & Injustice 4

Page 12

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


Total 12

Attached is a table of the 12 complaints investigated by the LGO, together with 
details and outcome.

I have also attached the Ombudsman's Annual Review letter 2016/17.

Page 13



Local Government Ombudsman Complaints 1st April2016- 31st March 2017

Reference ABC Dept Complaint details LGO decision LGO final comment
(1778)

15 020 670
Env

Services/Housing
1.  No service of a Right of 
Entry
Notice

2. Wrong notice was issued 
in order to circumnavigate 
landlord's right to dispute

Closed after initial 
enquiries - out of 
jurisdiction

n/a

(2857)
16 006 911

Parking Complains that the 
Council has produced 
fraudulent evidence in 
support of penalty charge 
notice issued to a third 
party.

Closed after initial 
enquiries -out of 
jurisdiction

n/a

(2858)
16 006 907

Housing Discrimination  by a 
Housing

Officer

Closed after initial 
enquiries- out of 
jurisdiction

n/a

(2859)
16 006 899

Parking Complains that the 
Council acted
maliciously in taking him to 
court for a public order 
offence

Closed after
initial enquiries - 
out of jurisdiction

n/a

P
age 14



(2920)
16 009 022

Housing The Council wrongly 
advised her tenants 
to stay put until they 
were removed from 
their homes by 
bailiffs

Closed after initial 
enquiries - no 
further action.

n/a

(3048)
16 016 661
1

Planning Complaint re the 
Council's decision to 
grant planning 
permission for a new 
dwelling in her village

Closed after initial 
enquiries - no 
further action

n/a

(1779)
16 000 718

Planning The Council failed to 
properly consider his 
neighbour's planning 
application

Not upheld:
no 
maladministration

n/a

(2994)
16 012 168

Planning Complaint relates to 
the planning 
permission that was 
granted to build a 
house on land 
neighbouring his 
property

Not upheld: no 
maladministration

n/a

P
age 15



(1752)
15 018 355

Planning Dissatisfied with the 
Council's 
investigation of 
alleged breaches of 
planning control

Upheld:
maladministration 
and injustice.

Fault by the Council not to make an initial site visit 
following Mr X's complaint.  The failure to keep Mr X 
informed of the progress of the investigation was also 
fault.  The LGO suggested the following remedial 
action: the Council would review the case and agree 
an action plan for the remaining stages in the 
enforcement investigation.  The Council would 
apologise to Mr X.  A senior officer would take 
responsibility for ensuring Mr X received regular 
reports about progress from now on.  The Council 
confirmed to the LGO that the suggested remedial 
action had been put in place.

(1792)
16 001 574

Planning Complaint re 
Council's handling of 
issues at  neighbour's 
property

Upheld: 
maladministration 
and injustice.

Fault by the Council in failing to resolve problems 
with a neighbour's untidy garden.  The LGO 
suggested the following remedial action: the Council 
would apologise and take steps to improve its 
planning enforcement system.  The Council would 
appoint a different Planning Officer to deal with the 
case, who would explain to the complainant what 
action would now be taken.The Council accepted 
the recommendations  and agreed to complete the 
actions within six weeks

(1793)
16 000 987

Planning Complaint re 
Council’s handling of 
issues at neighbour’s 
property

Upheld:
Maladministration 
and justice.

As above

P
age 16



(1750)
15 020 341

Planning Complaint re 
Council’s handling of 
issues at neighbour’s 
property

Upheld:
Maladministration 
and justice.

As above

P
age 17



Local Government &

20 July 2017 OMBUDSMAN
By email

Tracey Kerly
Chief Executive
Ashford Borough Council

Dear Tracey Kerly,

Annual Review  letter  2017

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGO) about your authority for the year ended 31
March 2017.  The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 
about your authority and the decisions we made during the period. I hope this information 
will prove helpful in assessing your authority' s performance in handling complaints.

The reporting year saw the retirement of Dr Jane Martin after completing her seven year 
tenure as Local Government Ombudsman. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of 
Ombudsman in January and look forward to working with you and colleagues  across the 
local government sector in my new role.

You may notice the inclusion of the ' Social Care Ombudsman' in our name and logo. You 
will be aware that since 2010 we have operated with jurisdiction over all registered adult 
social care providers, able to investigate complaints about care funded and arranged 
privately. The change is in response to frequent feedback from care providers who tell us 
that our current name is a real barrier to recognition within the social care sector. We hope 
this change will help to give this part of our jurisdiction the profile it deserves.

Complaint statistics

Last year, we provided for the first time statistics on how the complaints  we upheld against 
your authority were remedied. This year's letter, again, includes a breakdown  of upheld 
complaints  to show how they were remedied. This includes the number of cases where our 
recommendations remedied  the fault and the number of cases where we decided your 
authority had offered a satisfactory remedy during the local complaints process. In these 
latter cases we provide reassurance that your authority had satisfactorily  attempted to 
resolve the complaint before the person came to us.

We have chosen not to include a 'compliance  rate' this year; this indicated a council's 
compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. From April 2016, we established a 
new mechanism for ensuring the recommendations we make to councils are implemented, 
where they are agreed to. This has meant the recommendations  we make are more specific, 
and will often include a time-frame for completion. We will then follow up with a council and 
seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. As a result of this new Page 18



process, we plan to report a more sophisticated suite of information about compliance  and 
service improvement  in the future.

This is likely to be just one of several changes we will make to our annual  letters and the
way we present our data to you in the future. We surveyed councils earlier in the year to find 
out, amongst other things, how they use the data in annual letters and what data is the most 
useful; thank you to those officers who responded. The feedback will inform new work to

provide you, your officers and elected members, and members of the public, with more meaningful 
data that allows for more effective scrutiny and easier comparison  with other councils. We will keep 
in touch with you as this work progresses.

I want to emphasise that the statistics in this letter comprise the data we hold, and may not 
necessarily  align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include enquiries from 
people we signpost back to the authority, but who may never contact you.

In line with usual practice,  we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our website. The aim 
of this is to be transparent and provide information that aids the scrutiny of local services.

The statutory duty to report Ombudsman findings and recommendations

As you will no doubt be aware, there is duty under section 5(2) of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 for your Monitoring Officer to prepare a formal report to the council where it appears that the 
authority, or any part of it, has acted or is likely to act in such a manner as

to constitute maladministration or service failure, and where the LGO has conducted an
investigation in relation to the matter.

This requirement applies to all Ombudsman complaint decisions,  not just those that result in a public 
report. It is therefore a significant statutory duty that is triggered  in most authorities every year 
following findings of fault by my office. I have received several enquiries from authorities to ask how I 
expect this duty to be discharged. I thought it would therefore be useful for me to take this opportunity 
to comment on this responsibility.

I am conscious that authorities have adopted different approaches to respond
proportionately  to the issues raised in different Ombudsman investigations in a way that best reflects 
their own local circumstances.  I am comfortable with, and supportive of, a flexible approach to how this 
duty is discharged. I do not seek to impose a proscriptive  approach, as long as the Parliamentary  intent 
is fulfilled in some meaningful way and the authority's performance in relation to Ombudsman 
investigations is properly communicated  to elected members.

As a general guide I would suggest:

• Where my office has made findings of maladministration/fault in regard to routine mistakes and 
service failures, and the authority has agreed to remedy the complaint by implementing the 
recommendations  made following an investigation, I feel that the duty is satisfactorily discharged  
if the Monitoring Officer makes a periodic report to
the council summarising  the findings on all upheld complaints over a specific period. In a small 
authority this may be adequately addressed  through an annual report on complaints to 
members,  for example.

• Where an investigation  has wider implications for council policy or exposes a more significant 
finding of maladministration, perhaps because of the scale of the fault or injustice, or the 
number of people affected, I would expect the Monitoring Officer to consider whether the 
implications of that investigation should be individually reported to members.

• In the unlikely event that an authority is minded not to comply with my recommendations  
following a finding of maladministration, I would always expect the Monitoring Officer to report 
this to members under section five of the Act. This is an exceptional and unusual course of 
action for any authority to take and should be considered at the highest tier of the authority.

The duties set out above in relation to the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 are in addition to, 
not instead of, the pre-existing duties placed on all authorities in relation to Ombudsman reports under 
The Local Government Act 1974. Under those provisions, whenever my office issues a formal, public 

Page 19



report to your authority you are obliged to lay that report before the council for consideration and respond 
within three months setting out the action that you have taken, or propose to take, in response to the 
report.

I know that most local authorities are familiar with these arrangements, but I happy to discuss this 
further with you or your Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about how to discharge these duties 
in future.

Manual for Councils

We greatly value our relationships with council Complaints Officers, our single contact points at each 
authority. To support them in their roles, we have published a Manual for Councils, setting out in detail 
what we do and how we investigate the complaints  we receive. When we surveyed Complaints Officers, 
we were pleased to hear that 73% reported they have found the manual useful.

The manual is a practical resource and reference point for all council staff, not just those working directly 
with us, and I encourage you to share it widely within your organisation. The manual can be found on our 
website www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers

Complaint handling training

Our training programme is one of the ways we use the outcomes of complaints to promote wider 
service improvements  and learning. We delivered an ambitious programme of 75 courses during the 
year, training over 800 council staff and more 400 care provider staff. Post-course surveys showed a 
92% increase in delegates' confidence in dealing with complaints. To find out more visit 
www.lgo.org.ukltraining

Yours sincerely

Michael King
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman for England
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 20

http://www.lgo.org.uk/link-officers
http://www.lgo.org.ukltraining/


Page 21



Page 22


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes - To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 31st January 2017
	4 Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2017

